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A Case of Mistaken ldentity

Bullock’'s Tavern and The Horsman Hotel

by Doris Gaspar and Jennifer MacLeod

n 1978 the building at 269 Dalhousie

Street, on the northeast corner of
Dahousie and Murray, was designated
by the Town of Amherstburg as
historically significant. Research done
at the time stated that it had been built as
atavern by George Bullock in the 1830s.
Since its designation, the building has
been known locally as “Bullock’s
Tavern”.

However...it was a case of mistaken
identity.

The building in question is located
on Lot 9, east side Dahousie Street, and
currently houses The Artisan Girill.
George Bullock never owned nor
occupiedLot 9....but he DID own Lot 10,
next door. Bullock’s Tavern was
actually located on the property now
known as 257-265 Dahousie Street,

If you enjoy Reflections, please let us
know! e welcome your comments.
Reflections is also available by e
mail - please contact usfor details.

257-265 Dalhousie Street
built 1839-40 as Bullock’s Tavern

occupied at present by The Royal Sushi
Houseand The Society Shoppe.

Bullock’sTavern

Quartermaster Sergeant George
Bullock first appears in Amherstburg
records in 1835. Having recently
purchased his discharge from the
British Army, Bullock was not then
assessed as the owner of any land. In
1836 when Bullock petitioned for a
land grant to enable him to provide for
hislargefamily, hisrequest wasdenied.
This suggests that he was not in
possession of any property capable of
producing an income. Documents do
show that by 1837 Bullock was an
innkeeper in a two-storey building.

269 Dalhousie Street

built 1867 as The Hor sman Hotel

Thefollowing year here-located hisinn
toalvz-storey building. Itisnotcertain
wherethese two buildingswere located.
It is clear, however, that any event that
occurred at Bullock’s Tavern during
1837 and 1838 did not take placein the
building now located at 257-265
Dalhousie Street.
In 1839 Bullock purchased Lot 10 -
the property now known as 257-265
Dalhousie Street. In the Western
Herald of August 12, 1840, he
advertised the opening of his NEW
tavern, the British American Hotel.
This establishment was also referred to
as Bullock’s Tavern. He designed the
building with the bar entirely
continued on page 6
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Growing Up in the 'Burg

The River
by FGS

0 everyone who grows up in the

'Burg, “The River” holds acertain
fascination.

For some, it hasbeen agrave; others
aswimming hole; and for othersaplace
to explore. For two of my friends and
me, thelast onewasawaysforemost.

When you are seven yearsold, your
mind can be very imaginative. We
thought that we might cross the ice and
get al the way to Horseshoe Bay at the
north end of Bob-Lo Island. Our take-
off point was*“The Gully” at the foot of
Alma Street. As we got further from
shore we could hear the ice moving, so
the dream of our destinationwasgone.

When we turned around, one of my
friends, who had very thick glasses,
tripped andfell and hisglassesfell off. |
tried to reach them and stepped on some
thin ice and my foot went through. The
third member of the expedition party
grabbed me and pulled me back to keep
mefromfallingthrough.

So now we had a person who could
hardly see, one soaking wet and one
who was okay trying to get back to
shore.

When we finally reached safety,
there was a gentleman on a bicycle to
greet usand scold usfor being out onthe
ice. Not knowing who this person was,
we listened to him and then went on our
way.
The next day we found out he
worked at Brunner Mond with our
fathers and had seen us when he was
leaving work. Needless to say, the
excusesthat we had given (“1 steppedin
apuddle’ and “My glasses fell down a
sewer hole”) were discovered to be not
terribly accurate. (Not as accurate as
our fathers’ aimat our backsides.)

Sometimes now | wonder how,
considering some of our adventures, we
ever survivedtoadulthood. Needlessto
say, we never went onto the river ice

again.

Another River Story

by River Rat

hisstory isabout aneighbour who,

like al of us, had his share of
boats. First was the old “double-
ender” from a story one or two issues
back. Afterthat wassold, heacquireda
couple of wooden cedar-strip
Peterboro boats, but just the mention of
wood jogs the memory that if not
properly looked after, the dreaded rot
setsin. So now it was rebuilding the
transom, replacing ribs and
planking...wooden boats, ugh!

The next boat was a small 8-foot
dingy, but it proved too unseaworthy,
as he flipped that one and ended up
dunkedinHidden Lake.

On to a new adventure: the U.S.
Navy. Alas, histimein the Navy did
not allow for the possession of any
boats, as he was stationed in the
Mojave Desert. At the end of his
service he decided to return to
Ambherstburg, but in three years he had
accumulated alot of “ stuff” and thebig
guestion was how to get it home. A
neighbour had a 16-foot Glen-L
fibreglass boat he was willing to trade
for my buddy’s car, so a swap was
made, the boat was hitched up to his
other car, loaded up and he headed
home.

On his return to civilian life, the
Cdlifornia boat was sold to a loca
fellow and with a mittful of cash he
bought a new Chrysler boat powered
by a70 h.p. motor and anew adventure
began. He (we) used to travel by boat
to Grosse Ile and Gibraltar and cruise
the canals that intersect the islands.
Therewere numerous bridges crossing
over the canals and he traversed them
many timeswith no problems.

One particular day, when the water
had risen in theriver, he wastravelling
with the Bimini top up and it made
contact with the underside of a bridge
and ripped the top off the boat. This
boat may have been jinxed, because on
areturntrip hetangled with aspar buoy

Whereto find us

heMarsh Collectionislocated at
235 Dalhousie Street on the
upper floor.

We are open Tuesday to Friday
from 10am to4pm.

235A Dalhousie Street
Amherstburg ON « N9V 1W6
(519) 736-9191
www.marshcollection.org
e-mail:
research@marshcollection.org

The Marsh Collection gives
charitable tax receipts for donations
of $50 or more.

What istheM ar sh Collection?
he Marsh Historical Collection is a
local history/genealogy centre

located in the heart of Amherstburg.

Researchers, genealogists and history

buffsutilize our information files, books,

photographs, maps, genealogy files and
otheritems. Evenif you haveno specific
research purpose, come in to see our
exhibits on Detroit River history and
other aspects of Amherstburg's rich

heritage. We aso produce and sell a

variety of local history publications and

notecards.

TheMarsh Collection takesitsname
fromitsfounders, the Marsh family, who
owned and operated the Amherstburg
Echofor over 80years.

Articlesin Reflections are copyrighted and may not
be reproduced in any form without the permission
of theMarsh Collection Society.

just north of the Bru-Mon Yacht Club.
He was able to make it into the yacht
basin but the craft was written off by the
insurancecompany. A new (to him) boat
wasacquired, a19-foot ChrisCraft, but a
decision had been made to move back to
sunny California and the C.C. was too
big to takewith him. Back in California
he got back into boats, but that’ s another
story for another time.
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Yesterday’s News

from the archives of the Amherstburg Echo

1884

March - A penalty of $100 will be
imposed on any captain or mate who
sails a Canadian boat without a
certificate.

April - Soap bubble parties are the
latest rage.

May - The Building & Cemetery
Committee has had 125 maple trees
plantedinthecemetery.

1894

March - A concert was given at the
Town Hall for the benefit of the
Amherstburg Cricket Club.

April - Council is beginning to discuss
the instalation of an incandescent
lighting plant.

May - On Arbor Day (May 4th) the
teachers and students of the public
school will spend the day beautifying
theschool grounds.

1904

March - A heavy rainfall combined
with frozen drainshasresulted in many
cellarsbeing flooded.

April - A by-election will be held to
replace the mayor and councillor who
were “unseated” and another
councillor whoresigned.

May - Electric lights have been
installedin Christ Church.

1914

March - The Hamilton & Lewitt
Knitting Co. has enough ordersto keep
the factory working at full capacity all
year.

April - D Squadron, First Hussars, is
holding a rifle match on the old Fort
grounds.

May - Residents are complaining that
not one streetlight is functioning along
Sandwich Street between Elm and
Rankin.

1924
March - Several people who attended
the funeral of smallpox victim Gordon

Deneau have succumbed to thedisease.
April - The Bois Blanc Lighthouse has
been equipped with a stationary light
and nolonger requiresakeeper.

May - The 1.O.D.E. have raised $2100
toward the construction of a war
memorial, to be located near the high
school.

1934

March - An Echo headline reads:
“AUDITOR’S REPORT SHOWS
THAT REMARKABLE RECORD
WASMADE LAST YEARIN TOWN
FINANCING - Available Assets
Placed at $100,525.20 - Current
Liabilities $91,478.01, And SurplusAt
$9047.19 - FACE FUTURE WITH
LOWERING TAX RATE, SAYS
MAYORPARK.”

April - A fire of unknown origin has
damaged the roof of St. Anthony’s
School.

May - Five 12-Ib. cannonballs have
been dredged up from the riverbed at
Mullen's coa dock [now the site of
King' sNavy Yard Park].

1944

March - The newly-formed
Amherstburg Community Band gave
their first concert toapacked house.
April - Bell Telephonewill erect poles
a the rear of the properties between
George and Brock Streets, north of
Gore, removing the poles from the
Street.

May - There will only be three
“Canadian days’ on Bob-Lo this
season, when ferrieswill operate out of
Windsor andAmherstburg.

1954

March - The garbage dump on
Dalhousie Street has been covered and
levelled. Only the southeast corner
will be used until a new dump site is
found.

April - Town Council has turned down
Daylight Savings Timeby avoteof 5-3.

May - Two plans for the supply of
natural gas to Amherstburg have been
presented to Council.

- The new Bank of Montreal building,
southeast corner Richmond and
Dahousie, isopen.

1964

March - The town hall is in need of
major repairs and there is talk of
building anew one.

April - Construction has begun on the
new Anderdontown hall.

May - Ground has been broken for the
new Separate school in Maden (St
Theresa's).

1974

March - Allied Chemical has
announced a $13 million expansion
that will increase production of soda
ashand calciumchloride.

April - Calvert of Canadahasrequested
that Town Council approve the closing
of Balaclava Street between St. Arnaud
andWilliam Streets.

May - Premier Bill Davis will be the
guest speaker at adinner meeting of the
AAM Chamber of Commerce.

1984

March - The Amherstburg Legion has
agreed to swap the 4-inch naval gun
from the HMCS Kamloops, displayed
in front of their building, for a 12-
pounder so the Canadian Corvette
Trust can refurbish the last remaining
Corvette, theHM CS Sackville.

April - Since St. Gerard Mgjella School
(northeast corner Alma/6th
Concession) has an enrolment of only
76 students, it will be closed withintwo
years and its students transferred to St.
Theresa' sinMalden.

May - A Windsor developer has
proposed the construction of a marina
at the foot of Park Street in
Amherstburg.
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Shipping the Detroit

The Susan E. Peck

by Al Jackson

he Susan E. Peck wasbuiltin 1886

at Wyandotte, Michigan, asa230-
foot schooner with four masts, at a cost
of $76,000. She was constructed in
suchaway that her conversionto aself-
propelled steam barge could be easily
accomplished and this conversion did
takeplacetwoyearslater. Having been
built with a composite-type hull
(wooden planking with iron frames),
she was much lighter than atraditional
wooden ship and without cargo the bow
would ride so high that she was almost
impossibleto steer. Perhapsit wasthis
peculiarity that contributed to her
meeting with one or more accidents
every season.

One of her most infamous
accidents occurred in early October of
1891 when sheran aground and sank in
St. Mary’s River just below Sault Se.
Marie, completely blocking the
navigation channel. It was estimated
that about 140 vessel swereimprisoned
in the river before a 600-foot-long cut
could bedredgedto create asafe bypass
around the blockage. Thewreck of the
Susan E. Peck was finally raised on
October 30th and theriver re-openedto
normal traffic.

On November 20, 1892, the

upbound Susan E. Peck wasinvolved
in a collision with the downbound
three-masted schooner Nelson at the
Lime-Kiln Crossing in the Detroit
River just north of Amherstburg. The
schooner began taking on water and
quickly sank in 21 feet of water just
below Bois Blanc Island. The Peck
escaped with minor damage.

On September 17, 1893, the
steamer Peck, upbound with 2200
tons of hard coa from Buffalo to
Milwaukee, struck an underwater
obstruction near Colchester Reef in
LakeErieand stovealargeholein her
bottom. The captain, redlizing that
she was taking on water quickly, was
forced to beach her near Bar Point in
sixteen feet of water. Her decks
remained above water but it became
necessary to remove some of the coal
from her hold to make room for
salvage equipment. The unlucky
steamer wasfinally re-floated with the
aid of four large steam pumps that
continuously spewed out coal-black
water while she was towed by the tug
Saginaw to Amherstburg. There a
diver placed a temporary patch over
the hole and she was then towed to
Detroit for repairs totalling more than
$15,000.

On May 11, 1894, the name Susan
E. Peck was changed to Lewiston in the
hope of giving thevessel amuch-needed
change in luck. But her unfortunate
career of notabl e accidents continued.

OnAugust 5, 1906, the steering gear
of the Lewiston broke while coming
down the river opposite Amherstburg.
In those days, before the Livingstone
Channel, both upbound and downbound
vessels had to use the treacherous
Amherstburg Channel. Not being able
toanswer her helm, she suddenly veered
towards the Amherstburg shore and dug
her noseintwelvefeet of mudjust above
the Waterworksdock (now thenorthend
of King's Navy Yard Park). The next
day some of her wheat cargo was
removed and she was released from her
strand by the local tugs Home Rule and
Columbia.

Her last misfortune occurred on
April 12, 1923, when she stranded on
the southwest point of Kelly’sIsland in
Lake Erie. After being released by the
tug Custodian, she made her fina
voyage to Detroit and never ran again.
After lying idle at River Rouge,
Michigan, for ten years she was towed
across the river in 1933 to Sandwich,
Ontario, where the 47-year-old vessel
wasscrapped.

From Amher stburg Town Council Minutes
asreported in the Amherstburg Echo March 18, 1881

communication fromW.M. Reade, solicitor for Patrick Dawson, wasread, claiming damagesto the extent of
$100 from the corporation, on account of injury doneto him by the overflow of water from Sandwich Street
onto his premises on Richmond Street, by which overflow of water his wife’'s heath has been very seriously
affected, and hishay and other goodsinjured, and asking that the council’ sattention be al so called to the necessity of
some steps being taken in the prevention of arecurrence of the above-mentioned injury to health and property, by
thenecessary drainage of that portion of thestreet.

Patrick Dawson lived on Lot 35, north side Richmond Street, now the site of Rosewood Crescent.
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Bricks ‘n’ Beams
C.M.S. Thomas Drug Store

by Eleanor Warren

he building a 67 Richmond

Street will be 129 years old this
summer.  Although it has been
renovated several times- theorigina
block-wood siding has been covered
over with modern materias; the
windows and doors were changed
many years ago; the additions on the
south sideas shownin an early photo
have since been altered to become
part of the building - it is still
recognizable today as the former
C.M.S. ThomasDrug Store.

Charles Merrick Smith Thomas
(1855-1927) was a prominent
druggist in Amherstburg for 49
years. Born in Oakville, Ontario,
son of CharlesW. Thomas and Mary
Ann Smith, he came to Anderdon
Township in 1859 with his parents.
Charles Thomas Sr. operated a
sawmill there until moving to
Amherstburgin 1867, occupying the
“old British Treasury house” (the
Commissariat, today the HQ of the
Provincial Marine re-enactment
group). Charles M.S. Thomas was
educated in Amherstburg. He later
obtained a teacher’s certificate and
taught for afew yearsin Malden and

Amherstburg public schools. He

had previously apprenticed in W.A.
Whyte's drug store and graduated
with honours in 1878 from the
Ontario College of Pharmacy. That
same year Thomas established his
own drug businesson Murray Street,
where he remained until 1885 when

he built his drug store on the

southwest corner of Richmond and
Ramsay, which today houses the
River Town Timesoffice.

In 1881 Thomas had married

Margaret Heard (1862-1932). By
1890, with the drug store well-
established, he built anew homeon
the north side of Richmond Street,
opposite the store, for his family,
which grew to include 7 sons and
one daughter. Four of the sons
served overseas during the First
World War. When Charles M.S.
Thomas died in 1927, his children
were al living except for Albert,
who had paid the supreme sacrifice
at the2nd battleof Ypresin1915.
After Charles Thomas death,
the store was rented out for a few
years to a variety of merchants.
Max Rubenstein’s Dry Goods was
there in 1930; Mrs. Thomas was
living upstairs, where she died two

. g

C.M.S. Thomas Drug Store, circa 1900.
Courtesy Fort Malden NHSC

yearslater.

In 1938, while occupied by
Peterman’s Store, a waiting room
was equipped in the building for
patrons of the newly-established
SW.&A. bus between Amherstburg
and Windsor. In 1945 the building
was sold to Clarence and Blondine
Giroux for $3500; they sold it the
following year to Victor Nedin for
$4000. TheNedinfamily ownedthe
property until 1988 whenitwassold
to Peter Leardi for hispopular men’'s
store, 67 Richmond.

The Marsh Collection files
contain a great deal of information
about the C.M.S. Thomas family.
Researchersarewelcometo comein
and browsethrough thematerial.

March 2014.
Marsh Collection photo
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A Case of Mistaken ldentity

continued from page 1

unconnected with the hotel so that “ Tee-
totallers or any other class of persons
can be genteely accommodated without
experiencing the least annoyance
whatever.” There was also “a well
fitted out recess underneath the
building” below thenorth half.

Ora history relates that the hotel
once had an archway cut through to the
second storey to allow coaches and
horsemen accessto the stablesin rear of
the lot. There is some kind of acove
visible in the photo below. It is
unknownwhenitwasfilledin.

In 1842 Bullock was advertising in
the Western Herald that his “new and
splendid hotel” was for sae. He
continued his efforts to sell the hotel
whilepursuing acareer inlocal politics.
In 1850, Bullock was finally able to
lease thehotel to ThomasHironsJr. At
that time Bullock moved his family to
Sandwich and subsequently becamethe
Treasurer for Essex County.

During the 1850s Bullock’s Tavern
waspartly usedfor aninnand partly for
a store operated by William Duff. In
1857 Bullock conveyed the property to
agroup of hisfriends, tobeheldin Trust
on his behalf.  Perhaps this was his
attempt to protect his property from the
coming storm.

By 1860, George Bullock’ slifewas
in ruins. In 1859 he had to resign as
County Treasurer when great
discrepancies were found in his books.
All of Bullock’s lands were seized by
his creditors. To escape prosecution,
Bullock absconded to Detroit, leaving
his eight children living aone in
Sandwich - hiswife had died in 1860 of
consumption.

Because he had defaulted on his
mortgage, his hotel was sold by public
auction in 1863. The advertisement
described the British North American
Hotel asfollows: “Part of the building
has been occupied as a store, and the
basement storey has been let as a
saloon.”  James Webber, a former
tenant on the property, was the highest
bidder and the name of the hotel was
changed to the Webber House.

A detailed description of George
Bullock’slifecan befoundinthefiles
at the Marsh Historical Collection.

The former Bullock building has
not been historically designated and it
retains almost none of its original
architectural features.

Horsman Hotel

The building next door at 269
Dalhousie Street, erroneously
described as “Bullock’s Tavern”
whenitwashistorically designatedin
1978, was built by William Horsman
in 1867. Prior to his purchase of the
property on the corner of Dahousie
and Murray (Lot 9), theland had been
owned by the Furman-Legorefamily,
commencing with William Furmanin
1819. It was eventually inherited by
Moses Legore, who sold it to
Horsmanin 1866.

William’s father Thomas
Horsman had earlier operated an inn

b

known as The Horsman House or The
White Horse Hotel, which was located
where 60-64 Murray Street exists
today. The Horsmans had been tenants
on that property from at least 1853 and
possibly earlier.

William Horsman's new two-
storey stone building was also called
The White Horse Hotel or The
Horsman House and later The Gun &
Duck. Hisobituary in 1900 statesthat
he “looked after it personally for some
years, maintaining thereputation of the
house for good cheer and looking after
the best interests of the guests” By
1889, liquor licenses for the Horsman
House were being issued to different
proprietors. In 1902 it became known
as the Columbia House under the
management of John Fleming.

In the last 100 years the former
Horsman building has housed avariety
of stores and restaurants. Its current
occupantisTheArtisan Grill.

Webber House,

circa 1900.
The faded words “British
North American Hotel”
can be seen on the building in

thisphoto.
Marsh Collection P4133.3

Horsman Hotdl,
post-1883.

Marsh Collection P5102




New in Our Gift Shop SALE!N

Conver sation Pieces
by Helen Marsh
$¥9 now $1

Point au Pelee | dland
published 1926

$20 now $5

Souvenir Album
of Historic Amherstburg
$45 now $5

Souvenirs of the Past
by Wm. Baby
$2Z now $5

by Barbara Sandre by Shaun Vary \Ab/)l/t.]r;f;[: I\eﬁzrge

Historical fiction about René Well-researched information and $26/ now $10
Reaume, who came to photos of vessels built at Erieau, .

Canada in 1663 and is an 1943-80. Fort Malden
ancestor of many Essex softeover, 171 pages and the Old Fort Days

County families. $23 published 1927
softcover, 243 pages $20 now $5

$20

Information at the Marsh Collection

The Marsh Collection is a local history and genealogy centre with a focus on the heritage of the Town of
Amherstburg and the marine history of thelower Detroit River. Each year hundreds of researchers cometo the
centreor contact usby e-mail or telephone.

M aterialsthat arethe most often used at the Mar sh Collection include:

« information files on all aspects of local history, including schools,
churches, businesses, service clubs and much more

« genealogy files on hundreds of local families
» Amherstburg Echo, 1874-2012
» reference books on local history, Great Lakes and other topics

* over 5000 catalogued photographs

* land instruments for Amherstburg and Malden, 1867-1955




MarshCollecton ~~~~~~ Sping2014,
Then & Now

Southwest Corner Dalhousie and Murray Sts.

“Wigle” Block, occupied by Wigle Hardwar e in thiscirca 1900 photo.
Marsh Collection P4133.2
Constructed for John Kolfagein the 1860s, this building was also known at different times asthe
“Scratch” block, “ Shillington” Block and the“Bob-Lobuilding”. Itwasrazedin1975.

Below: Now part of King’s Navy Yard Park. Photo taken March 2014.
Marsh Collection photo
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